CITY OF HANOVER
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
FEBRUARY 16, 2021 — OFFICIAL MINUTES

Call to Order:

Mayor Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, February 16, 2021 to order at 7:00 p.m. Present
were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Jim Zajicek, MaryAnn Hallstein and Tom Dierberger. Also
present were City Engineer Nick Preisler, City Administrator Brian Hagen, Public Works Supervisor
Jason Doboszenski and Accountant Jackie Heinz. No guests were present. Councilor Ken Warpula was
absent.

Approval of Agenda:
MOTION by Hallstein to approve the agenda, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried unanimously.

Consent Agenda:

MOTION by Hallstein to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Dierberger.
a. Approve Minutes of February 2, 2021 City Council Meeting
b. Approve Claims as Presented:

» Claims $ 68,988.81
> Payroll $ 10,503.42
> P/Rtaxes & Exp. § 4035.22
» Other Claims $ 2.750.47
> Total Claims $ 86.277.92

¢. Res No 02-16-21-08 — Accepting Donation for Fire Department Equipment
d. Res No 02-16-21-09 —Authorizing 2020 Road Improvement Project Final Pay Voucher
Motion carried unanimously.

Res No 02-16-21-10 — Authorizing Bid for 2021 Pavement Improvement Project

Preisler stated included in the packet is the memo, resolution and cost estimate for the project which
consists of a mill and overlay on Riverview Road beginning at River Road and going East until the first
bend in the road. Riverview Road is 22 years old and showing moderate distress. The total cost comes
in just under $192,000.00 which includes engineering costs. Funding for the project will come from the
street capital fund, once the project is paid, a balance will be left for chip sealing during the year. Preisler
stated bids are scheduled to be opened March 10™, the project would begin late April to early May and be
completed within 4-5 weeks.

Dierberger inquired what metrics are used, visual and otherwise, to determine when road projects happen.
Preisler stated they visually rate all the roads every couple of years. Cracks are measured within a certain
area and given a rating; this rating corresponds to when work is done. Kauffman inquired when the
pavement improvement plan was last updated, Hagen stated 2 summers ago.

MOTION by Hallstein to approve Res No 02-19-21-10 as proposed, seconded by Dierberger. Motion
carried unanimously.

28901 109" Avenue North — SUP / Code Violations
Hagen stated the Special Use Permit for the Kottke Property is included in the packet for reference. The
SUP was obtained to operate a home extended business in 1998. Hagen further stated the number of
vehicles has come up in the last couple of years, he had a discussion with Brian Kottke who is operating



the business and noted to start cleaning up the property. Hagen stated no progress has been made since
that conversation. Included are photos dating back to 2004 showing the progression of vehicles, they have
begun to creep beyond the property line and over to B. Kottke’s house. B. Kottke applied for an SUP on
his property but was denied. Kauffman asked the allowed number of vehicles, Hagen stated 2 under repair
and 10 total. Hagen further stated the SUP called out plowing vehicles should be screened from public
view. Hagen stated B. Kottke is clearly out of compliance in the photos. After talking with City Planner
Nash, a letter should be sent referencing code violations and identify specific progress dates. Kauffman
inquired if the business is still operating, Hagen stated no, B. Kottke now has a full-time job. Hagen
further stated the City should approach the matter in a formal way, may include court, the City must show
notice was given with an adequate time frame which shows specific meets and expectations.

Kauffman stated an assessment should be done and to wait to start removing vehicles until road restrictions
are off. Hallstein stated this has been happening for a long time and will not be cleaned up quickly. She
would like to see good faith steps with measurable progress, the clean-up will not be done in a year, but
progress will be happening. Hagen stated to ask B. Kottke a time frame and what he could do, if not
acceptable then the City would decide. Zajicek stated to give him lock steps, if not followed then get
formal, the clean-up could drag on for 10 years without lock steps. Kauffman suggested to bring all adults
from both properties into the conversation. Dierberger inquired if B. Kottke is overwhelmed with the
clean-up and does not know where to start or take vehicles. Hallstein stated you can currently get $120 -
$140 per ton for car scrap, there is cost to dispose of the tires. Zajicek stated B. Kottke needs to know the
City will hammer him if progress is not being made. Dierberger inquired if a letter from City Attorney
Squires will be sent. Hagen stated it could be sent on City letterhead, not a bad idea to have the City
Attorney letterhead as well. Hagen further stated a deadline will need to be identified, for instance end of
May being the first deadline with # of cars cleaned up. Hagen stated he would like to meet with B. Kottke
and his mom as she is the property owner, by mid-March a plan is in place with the first deadline at the
end of May.

Hallstein inquired if environmental hazards could be mitigated first. Zajicek inquired if certain guidelines
need to be followed. Hagen stated the SUP calls out an inspection two times per year, in 2000 or so it
switched to annually and there has been no inspections since 2013. Dierberger suggested paying for a two
truck for one Saturday to show a good faith gesture. Hallstein stated B. Kottke has a friend with access
to vehicle moving equipment, the City can point him to places to bring items. Kauffman stated B. Kottke
needs to make the first step.

Council consensus to meet with B. Kottke and his mom, the property owner, have a plan in place by mid-
March with the first deadline being at the end of May.

Discussion: City Administration Intern

Hagen stated Kauffman mentioned hiring a City Administration Intern at the end of the last meeting.
Hagen further stated there are benefits for both sides, from his personal experience it worked well, it has
always been a career goal to bring an intern in. Kauffman inquired if Hagen has reached out to Phil in
Delano, Hagen stated he has talked with him in the past and has reached out to him on how to structure
the job. Kauffman stated the position must be able to multi-task. Hagen stated the intern would help in
all departments, it was not included in the budget, but estimating $15,000 in wages for 6 months
maximum, and the City would pay for membership and conference fees. The focus would be hiring an
individual with an interest in serving in local government management.



Hagen went on to note the tasks listed in the description. Dierberger stated the intern could help with
social media, how to reach more residents and community engagement. Hagen stated the hiring process
could be handled at the staff level just like the summer seasonal position.

Council consensus to have staff handle the hiring process with a recommendation brought to council.

Reports

Heinz
[ ]

Hagen

The Hanover Harvest Festival conducted their first meeting last night. President John Vajda has
resigned, and I was voted in as President with no Vice at this time. We plan to follow the
Governors guidelines and do not know if a festival will happen this year. Are gathering
information from vendors regarding cancellation fees and COVID-19 guidelines.

Listened to the WC Transportation meeting, the local sales tax has not been approved yet, although
it is generally supported, and they will be holding public hearings.

Gov. Walz has made updates which allow organizations to begin using the community hall for
meetings.

The Goal Setting Session is set for Thursday, March 4" from 5-9 pm

Buck will be submitting final plat for Crow River Heights West 5™ Addition.

Hallstein

Received an e-mail from a resident regarding the Fehn sign, after talking it is within the Cities
control, the resident overall seemed okay.
Was asked to be on the ECFE advisory board which meets once per quarter.

Adjournment
MOTION by Hallstein to adjourn at 8:05 pm, seconded by Zajicek. Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVED BY:

Chris Kauffman, Mayor

ATTEST:

Brian Hagen, City Administrator



